


Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 
discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action. If you wish to have an 
item pulled from the Consent Agenda/or discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

Recommendation: 

Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to 
exceed three (3) minutes in length. The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is 
required it will be referred to staff 

ti 







Item 6A





Item 6A

7



Item 6A

8







City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes October 30, 2019 

6A.     City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Special Meeting of Wednesday, October 30, 2019 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

1 OPEN SESSION AND ROLL CALL 

1A. Call to Order 
Mayor Fatula called the special meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. Council members present: 
Burruss, Fatula, Lomen and Mendoza.  

2 PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no public comments at this meeting. 

3 WORKSHOP 

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS ACTION: INFORMAL DISCUSSION 

Mayor Fatula explained the basis for calling the emergency meeting and the circumstances 
that justify the Council taking emergency action.  The Council identified several 
issues: 

¶ There have been 161 hours of unplanned power outages that citizens cannot plan
for and for which PG&E has no solution.

¶ Elderly, young and residents with medical issues are at risk.
¶ Medical patients are unable to obtain oxygen.
¶ At least 50% of Internet and cell services were down.
¶ PG&E crews cannot find lines or do not check at all; some lines are damaged; near

misses are especially dangerous.
¶ There may be a need to draft an ordinance to protect citizens from unnecessary

restrictions. Council member Burruss volunteered to create a draft ordinance.
¶ One death has been reported, but it has not been directly linked to the power

outages.
¶ The Council may want to consider providing some relief from payment of sewer use

charges to alleviate the financial hardship some citizens may experience as a result
of the power outages.

¶ There may also be a need to provide backup generation for all sewage pump
stations.

¶ There has been one structure fire and five calls for medical service during the most
recent power outage.

 Tom Parnham 
¶ Suggested that some control over generator noise is needed and asked whether

generator noise is covered in the City’s noise ordinance.

CalFire Chief Brian Estes 
¶ Emergency service providers are sharing in the inconvenience.
¶ There have been no reductions in services so far. Station 30 is staffed.
¶ Areas under power lines that need to be cleared are PG&E’s responsibility.















receive TDA funding shift. She expressed gratitude and appreciation for contributors 

for SVCC community PSPS dinner, thanked Carolyn McCully, Chamber of Commerce, 

Linda with Homie Joe's, and she looks forward to similar events in the future. 

Mayor Fatula 

Reported that once a State of Emergency was declared, he met with the Placer County 

Board of Supervisors to go over the impacts of the PSPS events. He provided 

information about minimum heat standards provided by OES which he did not agree 

were acceptable. Mayor Fatula provided an update on technology issues during PSPS 

events, estimated about half of the population did not hear about emergencies due to 

technology issues, problems with PG&E's website and contact numbers. He stated the 

State of Emergency is still here because it is unknown when the next PSPS event will be 

and reported PG&E provided 1,000 lunches, with provocation from Mayor Pro Tern 

Mendoza, that were given out to the community. Mayor Fatula spoke about himself and 

Mayor Pro Tern Mendoza offering to charge medical equipment, suggested the public 

check on their neighbors and to invite them into your home if you have heat. He stated 

he contacted Caterpillar to get a quote on an 8.5 Mega Watt generator, touched on the 

loss letter, and talked about meeting with NID and their proposal to take over Nevada 

County and part of Placer County's grid, reported more follow up to come. Mayor 

Fatula stated the court date for PG&E is November 20 and that he felt it would not be 

good for the state to take over PG&E. 

City Manager, Wes Heathcock 

City Manager Heathcock spoke about the Solid Waste Local Taskforce and the County 

considering a development around the dump and complaints received, stated a 2,000-

foot separation has the potential to force out of state garbage transfer. He reported the 

taskforce is working on a letter to explain the loss of an asset and the cost to Placer 

County. City Manager Heathcock stated the Government released $75 million in 

funding, maximum of $500,000 award, reported Colfax submitted an application for a 

backup generator, SVCC and VFW for community resource center, application for 

$440,000. He stated people should not be required to go to Auburn and spoke in favor 

of a facility in Colfax during PSPS events. City Manager Heathcock provided 

information about the generator the City rented and what additional services are 

available from the rental company if need be. He reported the roundabout is looking 

good, expected to be completed by the end of the week, on schedule and on budget. 

Mayor Fatula stated Cindy Gustafson commented Foresthill's PSPS set up was outdoor tables, 

and trailer showers, all outdoors. He inquired about what is planned for the center of the 

roundabout, provided a few suggestions. The public provided a few suggestions as well. 

Item 6D

18















Item 6D



Call Open Session to Order 

Roll Call 

COMMENT 

3A. Shadow Wood Subdivision Improvement Agreement 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: 

YES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

26



th 

th 



 
 

 

Staff Report to City Council 
 

  

  

  
 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report December 11, 2019 Cash Summary Report – October 2019 
 

 

 

FOR THE DECEMBER 11, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

Subject: Cash Summary Report – October 2019 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   ã Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file. 
 

Summary/Background 

 

The monthly financial report includes General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of 

Colfax Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on 

a cash basis and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank 

statements.  Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the 

proposed budget process each year. 

 

The purpose of these reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public 

of the financial transactions of the City. 

 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in  

October 2019.  

 

¶ Received first annual installment for Support Law Enforcement funding (Fund 218) of 

approximately $68,000.  The City expects to receive the balance of the total annual allocation 

of $100,000 by the end of the fiscal year. 

¶ Fund 250 ï Received the first allocation for Fiscal year funding via Placer County 

Transportation Agency (PCTPA) in October. Full funding of budgeted transfers from Gas Tax 

Fund and General Fund will be recorded in fiscal year end closing process (June 2020). 

¶ Negative cash fund balances are due to timing of funding allocations and reimbursements. 

o Fund 365 - Kneeland Street Improvements ï This new project is the first of the General 

Fund budgeted street improvements for fiscal year 2019-2020.  Funding will be 

transferred from General Fund as appropriate per approved budget. 

o Fund 355 ï CDBG Pavement Culver ï Pending fund transfer from Fund 244.  This 

project is near final completion and we expect final expenses and fund transfers to occur 

in November 2019. 

Item 6F







 $π

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

City of Colfax October 2019
General Fund Reserved Cash Expenses by Month

(Dollars in Thousands)

General Expenses Sheriff/Fire Animal Control Contract

Insurance Deposit to SCORE Risk Pool Audit, Grants, HR Consult Capital Outlay/Repairs

Legal Expenses

Item 6F





Item 6F

33





Item 6F





Item 6F

37



Item 6F



Item 6F











A. Workersô Compensation Coverage.  Statutory Workersô Compensation insurance and 

Employerôs Liability Insurance to cover its employees.  In the alternative, Contractor may rely 

on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as long as the program of self-

insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor Code. Contractor shall also 

require all subcontractors, if such are authorized by the City, to similarly provide Workersô 

Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of California for all of the 

subcontractorôs employees.  All Workersô Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the 

provision that the insurance shall not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until thirty (30) days 

prior written notice has been provided to City by the insurer.  The Workersô Compensation 

insurance shall also contain a provision whereby the insurance company agrees to waive all 

rights of subrogation against the City and its elected or appointed officials, officers, agents, and 

employees for losses paid under the terms of such policy which arise from the Services 

performed by the insured for the City. 

 

B. General Liability Coverage.  General liability insurance, including personal injury and property 

damage insurance for all activities of the Contractor and its subcontractors, if such are 

authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection with the Services.  The insurance shall be 

written on a comprehensive general liability form and include a broad form comprehensive 

general liability endorsement.  In the alternative, the City will accept, in satisfaction of these 

requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the comprehensive 

general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general liability endorsement.  The 

insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit personal injury 

and property damage for each occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  

General liability coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 

written authorization from the City. 

 

C. Automobile Liability Coverage.  Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury and 

property damage for all activities of the Contractor arising out of or in connection with this 

Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-owned vehicles, in an amount of not 

less than $1 million combined single limit for each occurrence. 

 

D. Policy Endorsements.  Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be 

endorsed with the following provisions: 

 

 1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be named as 

insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and defenses of claims arising from 

activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor.  

 

 2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured who is 

seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, except with respect 

to the insurerôs limits of liability. 

 

 3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected or appointed 

officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance maintained by the City or 

its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers shall be in 

excess of this insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

Attachment 2









 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules 

and regulations affecting the Services, including without limitation laws requiring licensing and 

prohibiting discrimination in employment because of race, creed, color, sex, age, marital status, 

physical or mental disability, national origin or other prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible 

or liable for Contractorôs failure to comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or 

regulations. 

 

Section 17.  Retention of Records. 

 

Contractor and any subcontractors authorized by the terms of this Agreement shall keep and maintain 

full and complete documentation and accounting records, employeesô time sheets, and 

correspondence pertaining to the Services, and Contractor shall make such documents available for 

review and/or audit by City and Cityôs representatives at all reasonable times during performance of 

the Services and for at least four (4) years after completion of the Services and/or termination of this 

Agreement. 

 

Section 18.  Alternative Dispute Resolution 

A.     Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, the primary contacts of the 

parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve any dispute arising from or 

relating to this Agreement subject to the following provisions.  Any party desiring to meet 

and confer shall so advise the other party pursuant to a written notice.  Within 15 days after 

provision of that written notice by the party desiring to meet and confer, the primary 

contacts for each party shall meet in person and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  

Each primary contact, or the person acting in their absence with full authority to resolve the 

dispute, shall attend the meeting and shall be prepared to devote an entire day thereto.  If 

any dispute remains unresolved at the end of the meeting, any party to this Agreement shall 

have the right to invoke the mediation process provided for in the subparagraph B below.   

B.     Subject to the provisions of subparagraph A, any dispute that remains unresolved after the 

meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-binding neutral mediation, before a 

mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at the Sacramento Office of the Judicial 

Arbitration and Mediation Service (ñJAMSò).  If within five days after the meet and confer 

the parties are unable to agree upon the selection of a neutral mediator, then the first 

available retired judge or justice at the Sacramento office of JAMS shall serve as the 

neutral mediator.  The parties agree to commit to at least one full day to the mediation 

process.  Additionally, to expedite the resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by 

mediation, the parties agree to each bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five 

neutral arbitrators, including their resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing 

within 30 days after the mediation has been confirmed.   

C.     If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall mediate the 

selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their dispute.  If the parties are 

unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to submit selection of an arbitrator to the 

mediator, whose decision shall be binding on the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall 

Attachment 2







--

September 5, 2019 

Chris Clardy 

The City of Colfax 

PO Box 702 

Colfax, CA 95713 

chris.clardy@colfax-ca.gov 

Scope of Work: Exterior 

Project: City Hall - Exterior 

33 

Colfax, CA 95713 

Thanks for the opportunity to bid on your painting project. Our bid includes all labor, 

materials, equipment and insurances to complete the following work: 

Pressure wash, scrape any loose paint, prime as needed, patch stucco and apply 

two (2) coats of low sheen paint. Includes, new colors. 

Bid: $3,650.00 

Please call or email with any questions. Thanks again. 

Dean Serenbetz 

530 383-7169 

Attachment 3

51





CSLB License No. 745726 / DIR No. 1000004508 

WE PROPOSE TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIAL, EQUIPMENT AND INSURANCE TO COMPLETE TIIE FOLLOWING PAINTING FOR THE 
ABOVE REFERENCED PROJECT. THIS PROPOSAL IS LIMITED TO THE SCOPE OF WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN AND IS SUBJECT TO AND 
CONDITIONED UPON A MUTUALLY ACCEPTABLE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT. IN THE EVENT OUR PROPOSAL IS ACCEPTED. OUR 
PROPOSAL, THE SCOPE OF WORK AND ITEMS HERIN SHALL BE MADE AN APPENDIX TO THE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT. THIS PROPOSAL 
IS VALID FOR 60 DAYS. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS UNION SIGNATORY 

Attachment 3



 
 

 

Staff Report to City Council 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report December 11, 2019 The Batchelder Group Chief Negotiator Consultant 

Agreement 
 

 

 

FOR THE DECEMBER 11, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: The Batchelder Group Chief Negotiator Consultant Agreement 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:    Funded: ã Un-funded: Amount:$12,000 Fund(s):120 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution __-2019 authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
a contract agreement with the Batchelder Group in an amount not to exceed $12,000. 

 

 

Summary/Background 

The City has eight employees represented by Union Local 39. The current Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) term is January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020. The City will begin negotiations 

with Union Local 39 starting in January 2020 to establish a new MOU, which will require a specialized 

consultant in the field of labor negotiations.  

 

Staff solicited labor negotiator recommendations from the neighboring jurisdictions and our legal 

counsel. Dennis Batchelder with The Batchelder Group name was recommended by the majority 

solicited. The most common comment about Dennis is he has a long history of providing negotiation 

services in the region with a keen ability to work collectively with the labor representative and council.  

 

Staff is recommending council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract agreement with the 

Batchelder Group in an amount not to exceed $12,000.   

 

Budget Impacts 

The labor negotiator is funded in the 120 Fund.  

 
Attachments 

1. Resolution __-2019 

2. The Batchelder Group Consultant Agreement 









 Page 3 

 

Section 6. Insurance.  
 
Without limiting Consultant's indemnification obligations provided for above, Consultant 
shall take out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times 
during the life of this Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers 
possessing a Best rating of not less than A.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor, 
professional or otherwise, to commence work on any subcontract until all insurance 
required of the Consultant has also been obtained by the subcontractor.  
 
A. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance 

and Employer's Liability Insurance to cover its employees. In the alternative, 
Consultant may rely on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as 
long as the program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the 
California Labor Code.  Consultant shall also require all subcontractors, if such are 
authorized by the City, to similarly provide Workers' Compensation insurance as 
required by the Labor Code of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's 
employees.  All Workers' Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the 
provision that the insurance shall not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until 
thirty (30) days prior written notice has been provided to City by the insurer.  The 
Workers' Compensation insurance shall also contain a provision whereby the 
insurance company agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the City and 
its elected or appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees for losses paid 
under the terms of such policy which arise from the Services performed by the 
insured for the City. 

 
B. General Liability Coverage. General liability insurance, including personal injury 

and property damage insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its 
subcontractors, if such are authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection 
with the Services.  The insurance shall be written on a comprehensive general 
liability form and include a broad form comprehensive general liability 
endorsement.  In the alternative, the City will accept, in satisfaction of these 
requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the 
comprehensive general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general 
liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 
million combined single limit personal injury and property damage for each 
occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  General liability 
coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 
written authorization from the City.  

 
C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily 

injury and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-
owned vehicles, in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for 
each occurrence.  

 
D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance 

policy shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  
 

58

















1

Wes Heathcock

Subject: FW: Labor Relations Consulting

From: Dennis Batchelder [mailto:thebatgrp@gmail.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, November 05, 2019 7:45 PM 
To: Wes Heathcock 
Subject: RE: Labor Relations Consulting 
 
Wes:  Following is a cost proposal for the Local 39 Classified Unit: 
 
Contact Maximum:  $12,000. 
Hourly Rate:  $150 per hour or fraction thereof, to include travel time.  Payable monthly within 30 calendar days of 
submission by TBG of monthly invoice. 
Cost of transportation will be fully assumed by Consultant. 
Contract termination: Contract maximum or 30 days advanced notice by either party.  
 
All work performed shall be subject to prior City approval.   
(Consultant will work to keep on-site meetings to a minimum, with frequent use of text, email, and phone 
calls.  Administrative support will be performed at my office.) 
 
Let me know if you have any questions.     
 
Dennis 
 
Dennis R. Batchelder 
The Batchelder Group 
Cell: 916.996.3906 
 

 

Exhibit A







City of Colfax 1 

Resolution __-2019 OMNIA Partner’s U.S. Communities Agreement 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № __-2019 
 

 

APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR ELIGIBILITY AND AUTHORIZING THE 

CITY MANAGER AND/OR COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTOR TO 

PARTICIPATE IN OMNIA PARTNER’S U.S. COMMUNITIES PURCHASING 

PROGRAM. 

 
WHEREAS, with OMNIA Partners, government agencies can utilize competitively solicited contracts 

to help save time and resources while still meeting purchasing requirements; and, 

 

WHEREAS, all cooperative purchasing contracts from OMNIA Partners have been competitively 

solicited by a lead public agency and meet rigorous cooperative standards and supplier commitments; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, third-party audits ensure program pricing commitments are met while we provide 

ongoing program leadership and direction.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax approves the 

application for eligibility and authorizes the City Manager and/or Community Services Director to 

participate in OMNIA Partner’s U.S. Communities purchasing program. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 11th day of December 2019 by 

the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:  

 
 

       _________________________________________ 

         Joe Fatula, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

             

____________________________________ 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

















 

City of Colfax 2 

Staff Report December 11, 2019 Hazardous Vegetation Ordinance Update 
 

 

There are exceptions for urgency ordinances, but there is sufficient time to adopt this ordinance prior to 

the next fire season such that it need not be adopted as an urgency ordinance. 

 

Assuming that the draft ordinance is circulated no later than December 31, Council should consider 

having a public discussion during January 2020. Staff recommends either adding it to the January 22 

regular meeting agenda for discussion or conducting a workshop on January 22 prior to the regular 

Council meeting. This will allow sufficient time for Council, staff and other interested parties to review 

and comment on the draft. 

 

Staff also recommends scheduling introduction of the ordinance for the February 12, 2020 regular 

Council meeting and adoption at the February 28, 2020 regular Council meeting. The interval between 

January 22 and February 12 will allow staff sufficient time to incorporate all proposed changes before 

February 12. Assuming no substantial changes are requested at the February 12 meeting, the ordinance 

can be adopted in the normal course of Council business as a consent item on February 28. 

 

Staff will be available to provide additional information or answer Council’s questions. 

 

Fiscal Impact:   

N/A 

 

Item 6J

77



 
 

 

Staff Report to City Council 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report December 11, 2019 Thumbler Marketing Campaign Agreement 
 

 

 

FOR THE DECEMBER 11, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: Thumbler – Community Branding Marketing Campaign Consultant 
Agreement 

Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:    Funded: ã Un-funded: Amount:$12,440 Fund(s):110 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution __-2019 authorizing the 

City Manager to enter into an agreement with Thumbler for a 1-year term with an optional second year in 

the amount of $12,440. 
 

 

Summary/Background 
 

Solace Graphics/Thumbler working with the community committee and City Council has executed the 

rebranding of the City of Colfax. The next logical step is to execute a marketing campaign centered on 

the strategies established by council. Thumbler provided a scope of work to effectively market the 

community through various methods included below for an up to 2-year term.  

 

Scope: ($6,220/year) 

Thumbler will work with City and community leaders to identify key events and attractions, prepare a 

press release calendar and research, write and distribute a minimum of six (6) press releases throughout 

the year. 

 

Create a thorough plan to optimize and publicize events and tourism that covers the entire calendar year 

and includes ancillary community events (Bear River, North Fork of the American River Rafting, Rollins 

Lake camping, Mountain bike tours/rentals). This plan can be integrated with the digital billboard to 

maximize benefits and resources. By planning in advance, many of the best opportunities for earned 

media coverage are available (Glossy magazines, tourism directories).  

 

Staff is recommending City Council approve the contract with Thumbler for a 1-year term with an 

optional second year in the amount of $12,440. 

 

Budget Impacts 

Funding for the branding design will come from Fund 110.  

 
Attachments 

1. Resolution __-2019 

2. Thumbler Consultant Agreement 

Item 9A

78















correspondence pertaining to the Services, and Consultant shall make such documents available for 

review and/or audit by City and City’s representatives at all reasonable times during performance of 

the Services and for at least four (4) years after completion of the Services and/or termination of this 

Agreement. 

 

Section 17.  Alternative Dispute Resolution 

A.     Before resorting to mediation, arbitration or other legal process, the primary contacts of the 

parties shall meet and confer and attempt to amicably resolve any dispute arising from or 

relating to this Agreement subject to the following provisions.  Any party desiring to meet 

and confer shall so advise the other party pursuant to a written notice.  Within 15 days after 

provision of that written notice by the party desiring to meet and confer, the primary 

contacts for each party shall meet in person and attempt to amicably resolve their dispute.  

Each primary contact, or the person acting in their absence with full authority to resolve the 

dispute, shall attend the meeting and shall be prepared to devote an entire day thereto.  If 

any dispute remains unresolved at the end of the meeting, any party to this Agreement shall 

have the right to invoke the mediation process provided for in the subparagraph B below.   

B.     Subject to the provisions of subparagraph A, any dispute that remains unresolved after the 

meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-binding neutral mediation, before a 

mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at the Sacramento Office of the Judicial 

Arbitration and Mediation Service (“JAMS”).  If within five days after the meet and confer 

the parties are unable to agree upon the selection of a neutral mediator, then the first 

available retired judge or justice at the Sacramento office of JAMS shall serve as the 

neutral mediator.  The parties agree to commit to at least one full day to the mediation 

process.  Additionally, to expedite the resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by 

mediation, the parties agree to each bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five 

neutral arbitrators, including their resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing 

within 30 days after the mediation has been confirmed.   

C.     If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall mediate the 

selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their dispute.  If the parties are 

unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to submit selection of an arbitrator to the 

mediator, whose decision shall be binding on the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall 

select a neutral arbitrator from the then active list of retired judges or justices at the 

Sacramento Office of the JAMS.  The arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the 

provisions of the California Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code 

of Civil Procedure.  In such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure 

Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement.   

 
D.     This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. If there is no 

Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City shall be used 

instead of a Sacramento office. 

 

Section 18.  Severability. 

 

Item 9A

85



The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid by 

an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in 

full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual written consent of the parties. 

 

Section 19.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. 

 

This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive expression of 

the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  All 

prior written and oral communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and 

representations, are superseded in total by this Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or 

extended from time to time only by written agreement of the parties hereto. 

 

Section 20.  Time of the Essence. 

 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services. The Consultant will perform its Services 

with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices and shall devote such 

time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their timely completion.   

 

Section 21.  Written Notification. 

 

Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 

communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing 

and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows.  

Either party may change its address by notifying the other party in writing of the change of address. 

Notice shall be deemed communicated within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed 

within the State of California as provided in this Section. 

 

If to City:   City of Colfax 

     33 S. Main Street 

     Colfax, CA 95713 

 

If to Consultant:   Thumbler 

     111 Bank Street #196 

     Grass Valley, CA 95945 

Section 22.  Execution. 

 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and the 

same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one original counterpart is 

signed by both parties hereto.  In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or 

account for more than one such counterpart. 

 

 

Section 23. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective 

parties hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 

 

Section 24. Attorneyôs Fees.  If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce 

Item 9A

86



any of its terms or to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 

its reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any such fees 

costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day first above 

written: 

CITY  CONSULTANT 

Signature Signature 

Printed Name Printed Name  

Title  Title 

Date   Date 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 

Item 9A

87



http://www.Thumbler.net
http://thumbler.net
http://www.Thumbler.net


http://thumbler.net


Op6ons	for	research	and	funding	include	tourism	grants,	Placer	County	Economic	Resource	
Commission	and	related	agencies	and	businesses	(Rollins	Lake,	Raaing,	etc).	Note:	Funding	
efforts	not	included	within	this	proposal.	

EsAmated	Time	and	Materials	

Press	Releases	
Fixed	cost	fees	$300	per	release	in	distribu6on	fees		
	 	 Sub-total—	 =		$300	
Time	alloca6on	outline	for	developing	each	press	release	
Mee6ng/concept	 	 2	hr	
Write		 	 	 2	hr	
Approve/revise	 	 1	
Distribute	 	 	 1	
Follow-up/report	 	 1	
	 	 Sub-total—	 7	hours	@	$85	=	$595	+	$300	=	$895	

Editorial	calendar	and	schedule	steps	
•	Request	par6cipa6on	from	other	agencies,	possibly	businesses,	and	organiza6ons	
•	Iden6fy	related	organiza6ons		
•	Select	events/ac6vi6es	to	focus	on	
•	Compile	events	
•	Right-match	to	seasons	

These	steps	will	establish	an	annual	editorial	calendar.	It	is	an6cipated	that	year	two	will	
reflect	this	calendar	with	minor	adjustments.	

Sub-total—10	hours	full	calendar	process	=	$850	

Combined	totals	
$895	x	6	=	$5370	+	$850	=	$6220	per	year	or	$518	per	month	

Suggested	terms	

Proposed	offer	is	valid	for	two	(2)	years	and	is	itemized	annually.	

Proposed	payment	plan:	Budget	as	a	monthly	expense	for	a	fixed	rate	for	twelve	months.	

Cancella6on:	Either	party	can	ini6ate	a	cancella6on	with	thirty	days	no6ce.	

thumbler.net City of Colfax: Tourism Press Campaign 3

Exhibit A 
Item 9A

http://thumbler.net


Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report December 11, 2019 Amendment to the Antique Fire Truck Donation 

Resolution 59-2018 

FOR THE DECEMBER 11, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: Amendment to the Antique Fire Truck Donation Resolution 59-2018 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:  Õ Funded: Un-funded: Amount: $ Fund(s): 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution __-2019 amending Resolution 

59-2018 to allow storage of the antique vehicles on city property under the outlined conditions.

Update: 

City Council approved Resolution 59-2018 at the September 26, 2018 regular meeting authorizing the 

donation of the 1936 Dodge and 1946 International antique vehicles with the stipulation the vehicles 

were to be removed from city property 60-days of taking ownership. The Colfax Firefighter 

Association has struggled with securing a reasonable cost storage location for the donated vehicles; 

therefore, the Association is asking Council to consider allowing the vehicles to remain on city 

property under the following conditions: 

1. Unless City Administration determines the space is needed for Colfax Fire Department.

2. Maintain a certificate of liability endorsing the City of Colfax as additionally insured.

3. Maintain vehicle insurance on the operational antique equipment.

The Firefighter Association would be required to provide proof of coverage on an annual basis. 

Staff is recommending Council approve the amendment to Resolution 59-2018 to allow storing the 

antique vehicles on city property under the outlined conditions. 

Summary/Background 

The City of Colfax owns two antique fire engines, a 1936 Dodge Fire truck, “currently used in parades 

and other events” and a 1946 International Fire truck, “not running”.  

The Colfax Firefighters Association is requesting the City of Colfax donate both of these antiques to 

them. The Association would like to continue to maintain and use the 1936 Dodge as a parade truck. In 

the future, the Association hopes to refurbish the 1946 International so that it too could be used for 

parades and other events. (See the attached letter of donation request, dated July 23, 2018). 



 

City of Colfax 2 

Staff Report December 11, 2019 Amendment to the Antique Fire Truck Donation Resolution 

59-2018 
 

 

Currently both trucks are stored at the City’s Fire Stations. The Association’s President and Treasurer 

have agreed the vehicles will need to be removed from City property once the Association takes 

ownership. They both understand the City of Colfax and Fire Department Administration stipulation 

that both vehicles will be removed from City property within 60-days to recover the storage space 

currently taken up by the antiques. Also it is not good business practice to store such items on City 

property once the ownership has been transferred as it could open the City for liability claims. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Colfax. 
 

Attachments 

1. Resolution __-2019 

2. 2018 original letter of request from the Colfax Firefighter Association and vehicle images 

3. Resolution 59-2018 

 



City of Colfax 

Resolution __-2019 
Amendment to the Antique Fire Truck Donation 

Resolution 59-2018 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № __-2019 

 AMENDING RESOLUTION 59-2018 TO ALLOW STORAGE OF THE ANTIQUE 
VEHICLES ON CITY PROPERTY UNDER THE OUTLINED CONDITIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Colfax owned two antique fire engines, a 1936 Dodge fire truck and a 1946 

International fire truck; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Colfax Firefighters Association volunteers have successfully restored the 1936 Dodge 

for use as a parade truck; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Colfax Firefighters Association would like to continue to maintain and use the 1936 

Dodge fire truck in this capacity and refurbish the 1946 International fire truck to also be used in parades and 

events; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Colfax Firefighters Association has agreed to the following conditions to store the 

donated antique vehicles on city property:  

1. Unless City Administration determines the space is needed for Colfax Fire Department. 

2. Maintain a certificate of liability endorsing the City of Colfax as additionally insured. 

3. Maintain vehicle insurance on the operational antique equipment; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Colfax Firefighters Association agrees the titles of the two vehicles will not be 

transferred to a third party without first offering the City of Colfax the opportunity to reacquire the antiques; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council had determined it is in the best interest of the City to donate the two 

vehicles to the Colfax Firefighters Association for the purpose of refurbishing the antiques for parades and other 

events with the requirement. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax to authorize 

amending Resolution 59-2018 to allow storage of the antique vehicles on city property under the outlined 

conditions. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 

Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 11th of December 2019 by the following vote of 

the Council: 
 

AYES:     

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  
      

Joe Fatula, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 



94



95







Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report December 11, 2019 Selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

FOR THE DECEMBER 11, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Alfred A. ñMickò Cabral, City Attorney 

Prepared by: Alfred A. ñMickò Cabral, City Attorney 

Subject: Rotation of City Council Officers: Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A: Õ  Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Select Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for 2020 

Summary/Background 

The ceremonial nature of the first Colfax City Council meeting in December usually involves rotating 

the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem chairs. To a limited extent, that process is statutory. Government Code 

§36801 requires the City Council to meet at the meeting at which the declaration of election results is

made and choose a Mayor and a Mayor pro tempore. The statute does not otherwise address selection

of a Mayor or Mayor pro tem in non-election years.

On October 23, 2019, the Council adopted the following policy regarding the selection of Mayor and 

Mayor Pro Tem:  

The Councilôs general policy is that every member should have the opportunity to rotate into and serve 

as Mayor Pro Tem and Mayor for succeeding one-year terms in each position. The Council reserves 

discretion to vary from this policy and the procedures it establishes.  

1. The Council will choose one of its members as Mayor and one of its members as Mayor Pro

Tem as follows:

A. At the first regular Council meeting in December of each year during which there is no

general election, the Council shall, by majority vote of a quorum present and voting, select its Mayor 

and Mayor Pro Tem for the ensuing calendar year.  

B. In years during which there is an election of members of the Council, the selection shall

be made following the declaration of the election results and installation of the members elected. That 

selection will be made at the first regular Council meeting in December provided, however, that if for 

any reason the declaration of election results is delayed beyond the first meeting in December, then the 

selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem shall be made at the meeting at which the declaration of 

election results is made, and after the declaration and installation of the members elected. 

2. This is the process the Council will follow each time a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem is selected:

A. The Mayor Pro Tem shall be seated as Mayor.

B. The Council shall by majority vote of a quorum present and voting select one of its

members to serve as Mayor Pro Tem. 




	00 - Agenda
	Draft Packet 1
	06A - Minutes Special Meeting 10-23-19 Cannabis Workshop
	06B - Minutes Special Meeting 10-23-19 Pond 3 Fissure
	06C - Minutes - Mick 10-30-2019 Special Meeting SOE Proclamation
	06D - Minutes Regular Meeting 11-13-19
	06E - Special Meeting 11-25-19 Shadow Wood & Fire Station 37 Roof
	06F - Cash Summary October 2019
	2020-04 Oct Staff Report Cash Summary 
	2020-04 Oct Cash Balance Graph Council report
	Cash Summary - Oct Attachment 2

	06G - Exterior Painting City Hall & Depot
	Exterior Painting of City Hall and The Depot Staff Report
	Exterior Painting of City Hall and The Depot Resolution
	Exterior Painting City Hall & Depot Contractor Agreement
	Painting Quotes2

	06H - Batchelder Group Chief Negotiator Consultant Agreement
	Batchelder Group Chief Negotiator Consultant Agreement Staff Report
	Batchelder Group Chief Negotiator Consultant Agreement Resolution
	Batchelder Group Consultant Agreement
	191211 Exhibit A The Batchelder Group Consultant Contract

	06I - OMNIA Partners
	2019 SR OMNIA Partners - US Communities Master Agreement
	2019 Reso - OMNIA Partners US Communities Agreement
	OMNIA Partners Registration
	OMNIA Partners Terms and Conditions

	06J - Hazardous Vegetation Ordinance Update
	09A - Thumbler Community Branding Marketing Campaign
	Thumbler Community Branding Marketing Campaign Consultant Agreement Staff Report
	191Thumbler Community Branding Marketing Campaign Consultant Agreement Resolution
	Thumbler Consultant Agreement Insurance removed
	Exhibit A Thumbler Marketing Campaign Proposal

	09B - Amendment Antique Fire Truck Donation Reso 59-2018
	Amendment to the Antique Fire Truck Donation Resolution 59-2018 Staff Report
	Amendment to the Antique Fire Truck Donation Resolution 59-2018 Resolution
	Antique FE donation request
	Resolution 59-2018 Donation of antique fire trucks

	09C - Rotation of City Council Officers Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem




